
Tibar Bay Port Port PPP 

Clarifications on prequalification documents 

# Questions Answers 

1. How are ‘intangible assets’ defined in 
the computation of ‘Net Worth’ in 
Annex 4, Clause 2.1? 

‘Intangible assets’ will be defined as per the IFRS 
definition of 'intangible assets' and will be excluded from 
the computation of net worth. However, an intangible 
asset that relates specifically to a 'concession right', may 
be included in the calculation  
 
1. where such a 'concession right' is recognized as an 
intangible asset under Interpretation 12 (Service 
Concession Arrangements) [IFRIC 12], and  
2. relevant information in the audited financial 
statements disclose the valuation of the 'concession 
right'.  
 
Revised definition of Net Worth 
Net worth = (paid-up share capital) plus (reserves) 
plus (concession right) minus (revaluation reserves) 
minus (intangible assets excluding concession right) 
minus (miscellaneous expenditures to the extent not 
written off and losses carried forward)." 

2. Is a prospective bidder (or where the 
prospective bidder is a consortium, 
the Lead member) permitted to 
submit details of its parent company 
(as defined is Clause 5.3) as evidence 
satisfying the technical and financial 
criteria set out in Annex 4? 

It is possible for a prospective bidder to provide details of 
its ‘parent company’ as evidence satisfying Annex 4, 
provided that the ‘parent company’ owns the majority of 
the voting securities and a has a majority representation  
in the Board of the prospective bidder as set out in Clause 
5.3  

3. Is it mandatory that a prospective 
bidder have O&M experience as 
outlined in Annex 4, Clause 1.2? 

It is not possible to relax this condition as the O&M 
experience of a port operator is considered critical to the 
successful operations of a port project. 

4. What are the relevant legal provisions 
contained in Decree Law 19/2009 and 
10/2005 (as cited in Form D – 
Affidavit) 

DL 19/2009 is the Penal Code of Timor Leste. Title VI 
contains anti-corruption provisions. It prohibits active 
and passive corruption and also deals with 
embezzlement, misappropriation, abuse of power, abuse 
of position, and refusal to co-operate by an official.  
 
The reference in Form D is meant to be to Book II of the 
Penal Code. For the English translation of the Penal Code, 
please refer to the website of the Jornal da Republica of 
Timor Leste  
(http://www.jornal.gov.tl/lawsTL/RDTL-Law/RDTL-
Decree-Laws/Decree%20Law%2019-2009.pdf ). 
 
Article 29(1) of Decree Law 10/2005 sets out causes for 
disqualification of bidders taking part in public 

http://www.jornal.gov.tl/lawsTL/RDTL-Law/RDTL-Decree-Laws/Decree%20Law%2019-2009.pdf
http://www.jornal.gov.tl/lawsTL/RDTL-Law/RDTL-Decree-Laws/Decree%20Law%2019-2009.pdf


procurement. For an English translation of the Decree 
Law, please refer to the website of the Jornal da 
Republica of Timor Leste 
(https://www.mof.gov.tl/wp-
content/uploads/2011/05/Decree_Law_10_2005_EN.pdf)  
 
Bidders that fall into the following categories are 
considered disqualified and excluded from the 
procurement proceedings: 
 
a. are insolvent or declared bankrupt; 
 
b. are in a situation or process of ceasing activity, trustee, 
and bankrupt or in liquidation; 
 
c. their business is being administered by a court of by a 
judicial agent; 
 
d. their business activities have been suspended by 
judicial decision; 
 
e. have fiscal, social contribution debts or debts of any 
nature with the State; 
 
f. their directors or administrators have been convicted 
by judicial sentence in the process of being judged, for 
any criminal offense related to their professional conduct 
or with the delivery of false statements or wrongful 
information in relation to their qualifications, for entering 
into a contract with any RDTL public institution within the 
previous five years; 
 
g. have been disqualified by any other cause in result of 
administrative suspension or licensing procedures; 
 
h. the bidders or their representatives are found to be in 
an incompatible situation, in the terms of the present 
charter; 
 
i. have submitted more than one bid in the same tender 
 

5. What form of evidence needs to be 
submitted to satisfy the technical and 
financial criteria as set out in Annex 4? 

A certification or declaration from the relevant Port 
Authority or Government counterparty would be 
acceptable evidence for the technical criteria. Preferred 
evidence would be documentation / declarations / 
certifications issued by third parties (other than the 
Prospective Bidder and its affiliates) supporting the 
information provided in the bid. 

https://www.mof.gov.tl/wp-content/uploads/2011/05/Decree_Law_10_2005_EN.pdf)
https://www.mof.gov.tl/wp-content/uploads/2011/05/Decree_Law_10_2005_EN.pdf)


 
A certification from the relevant company’s CFO / Finance 
Director would be acceptable evidence in relation to the 
Financial Criteria. 

6. What sample of ports needs to be 
cited as operation and construction 
experience as envisaged in Annex 4? 

The only requirement is to demonstrate sufficient 
experience to meet the construction and operation 
criteria set out in the Prequalification Document. It may, 
however, be advisable to disclose more experience than 
strictly necessary to meet the minimum criteria, in case 
evidence provided relating to one or more projects is 
deemed insufficient (this would allow a prospective 
bidder to still comply with the requirements even though 
such projects were not taken into account in assessing 
compliance with the minimum technical criteria). 

7. What form should documents 

required under Annex 5 of the 

prequalification documents be 

presented in when submissions 
are made ? 

 

Specific documents referred to in the PQ 

documents must be presented in the manner 

referred to i.e. certified or notarized etc… All other 

documents may be presented as simple copies 

8. Where submissions are made 

under Annex 5 other than in 

English or Portuguese, in what 

form should the translation of 

such documents be made 

As per section 5.1 of the prequalification 

documents, such translations have to be certified. 

9. What legalization procedures 

need to be followed when 

submissions are made under 

Annex 5 of the prequalification 

documents 

The prequalification documents specify that certain 

documents be notarized. Notarization to be 

completed as per the procedure applicable in each 

relevant jurisdiction. 

10. Would documents that are 

translated and certified by 

lawyers as permitted in certain 

jurisdictions be acceptable ? 

Such documents would be acceptable if certified by 

an authority empowered to do so. 

11. Under Annex 5 section 1.2 (i) 

would it be permissible to adapt 

Form B to the rules applicable to 

written Powers of Attorney as 

required in certain jurisdictions ? 

Form B may be amended to comply with specific 

requirements of applicable law provided that the 

content of the same remains untouched. 

12. Are deeds and acts performed by 

legal executives i.e lawyers and 

solicitors with respect to a Power 

of Attorney be acceptable in the 

same manner as that performed 

by a notary as contemplated in 

Annex 5  section 1.2 (ii) ? 

If such legal executives are given the same powers 

as notaries and as long as it does not affect the 

enforceability of the instrument, this should be 

acceptable. 

13. Where amendments have been 

made to the Memorandum and 

Articles of Association, would it 

suffice if an updated version of 

The extract certificate detailing the names of 

directors, executives and shareholders at a 

particular date (together with other corporate 

information regarding the company) together with 



the Memorandum and Articles of 

Association are submitted along 

with an extract of the Certificate 

of Registration of the company for 

purposes of Annex 5 Section 1.4 

an amended and restated version of the Articles of 

Association (instead of the original Articles of 

Assocation together with all amendments made to 

such articles) would be acceptable to meet the 

requirements as set out in Annex 5 section 1.4 

14. When is the Prequalification 

Applications Submission 

Deadline ? 

5th December 2013 at 15.00 hours Dili time. 

15. Is it possible to make submissions 

as required under the 

prequalification documents via 

email by the 5th December 2013 

at 15.00 hours Dili time with the 

originals to follow via 

courier/postal service ?  

The  prequalification documents require that 

originals are received by the prequalification 

applications submission  deadline of 5th December 

at 15.00 hours Dili time. 

16. Page 22 of the prequalification 

document refers to ‘Compliance 

with the ISO 9001 and ISPS 

norms’ while the table on page 28 

refers to ‘Compliance with E&S 

requirements’. Could you please 

confirm ?  

‘Operation Experience’ Table on page 28 of the 

prequalification document should refer to 

‘Complaince with ISO 9001 and ISPS norms’ 

instead of ‘Compliance with E&S requirements’. 

17. Would it suffice if a copy of the 

consortium agreement as 

required under the 

prequalifciation document is 

submitted instead of the original ?  

A copy of the consortium agreement is acceptable.  

 


